
 

 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 

 
Date: 

 

Wednesday, 28 September 2022 

Time: 
 

7.00 pm 

Venue: 
 

Council Chamber,  Moorlands House, Leek 

20 September 2022 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

5. Declaration of Interests:-  

  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 

 

7. Work Programme (Pages 7 - 8) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 
 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 

 

8. SMDC Refreshed Sports and Physical Activity Strategy (Pages 9 - 42) 

9. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 The Chair to move:- 
 

 “That pursuant to Section 100A (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 

transacted or nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach 
of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 100I (1) 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
paragraphs indicated.” 
 

10. Proposals for the Delivery of the Disabled Facilities Grant Programme (Pages 43 - 

78) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) ) 

 
 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor I Herdman (Chair) Councillor D Price (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor G Bentley Councillor M Bowen 

Councillor C Brady Councillor S Ellis 
Councillor B Emery Councillor E Fallows 

Councillor A Hart Councillor N Hawkins 
Councillor T Holmes Councillor K Hoptroff 
Councillor B A Hughes Councillor L Page 

Councillor H Plimley Councillor P Routledge 
Councillor Routledge Councillor J Salt 

Councillor P Wood  
 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PANEL MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 13 JULY 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor I Herdman (Chair)   
 

 Councillors S Ellis, B Emery, A Hart, N Hawkins, T Holmes, 
K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, L Page and P Routledge 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors J Aberley, K Flunder, K J Jackson, P Roberts, 

S Scalise, L Swindlehurst and R Ward 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors D Price, M Bowen, E Fallows, H Plimley, Routledge and 

J Salt 
 

10 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 

 

Councillor Swindlehurst was substitute member for Councillor Price and Councillor 

Jackson substituted for Councillor Salt. 
 

11 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 

 
  DECIDED:  That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 June 2022,   be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

12 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN). 
 

There were none. 
 

13 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:- 

 

No declarations of interests were made. 

 
14 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 

 

Councillor Cawley was not present at the meeting but had submitted the question 
below in accordance with the procedure rules 
 
Q.“ A question concerning the cultural and artistic heritage of Leek . I am interested 

to ascertain given the review of the Nicholson Institute the storage of artefacts that 

SMDC is the custodian of and whether it has been properly recorded and catalogued 
by a professionally qualified person?” 

 
Response from Councillor Flunder - Portfolio Holder for Tourism: 

I can confirm that the artefacts are properly recorded and catalogued and this has 

been done by professionally qualified people. Most recently, the storage of the 
collection was reviewed by a representative from Staffordshire County Council’s Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 13 July 2022 
 

2 
 

Archives & Heritage Service in June 2022. The officer in question is a qualified 
museum mentor under the Associateship of the Museums Association mentoring 

scheme. 
 

15 WORK PROGRAMME 

 

At this point of the meeting, members commented on the timeliness of reports and 

the Leader assured the Panel that work was being carried out around this and 
improvements would be seen going forward.  
 

Councillor Kevin Jackson requested an additional item on the outcome of the 
Leveling Up Fund to be included. 

 
DECIDED: That the Panel’s Work Programme be agreed, subject to an item being 

added on the Levelling Up Fund. 

 
16 SHARED PROSPERITY FUND INVESTMENT PLAN - LISA HOYLAND, 

REGENERATION OFFICER. 
 

Councillor Flunder – Portfolio Holder for Tourism and Regeneration, introduced a 

report on the preparation of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan and 
gave thanks to all those that had taken time to assist with this bid.  

 
The UK government Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUPHC) had launched the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) which succeeded 

the European Union structural funds (ERDF and ESF). 
 

The primary goal of the UKSPF was to build pride in place and increase life chances 
across the UK. There were three UKSPF investment priorities:- 
 

 Communities and place;  

 Supporting local business; and  

 People and skills (from 2024/25 unless a voluntary/community sector 
project whose European Social Fund funding is due to end sooner). 

  
A visual representation of the broad priorities and links to the Levelling Up agenda 
was shown in Appendix 1 of the report. 

 
An allocation of funding had been made to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

against which the Council has to deliver agreed interventions and outcomes.  
 
In order to be able to draw down the allocation, an Investment Plan must be 

submitted to DLUPHC by 1st August 2022 agreed by the Leader, the Chief 
Executive and the Section 151 Officer.  

 
A webinar was planned for 15th July to which a wide range of stakeholders were 
invited to find out more about the fund. 

 
Some members had reservations around the plans being achievable due to the 

limited time scales attached to the Fund and the amount of influence members 
would have in their wards. The Panel was assured that at this stage it was an outline 
plan, views were being sought from a range of stakeholders and further consultation 

would be carried out. Councillor Flunder encouraged members to contact him should 
they have suggestions or questions.  

Page 4



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 13 July 2022 
 

3 
 

 
Due to the detail and layout of the information contained within the report, some 

members found the documents difficult to read on the iPad.  
 
A suggestion was made for opportunities for cross border working to be explored. In 

response to a query around capital and revenue costs, it was explained that the 
capital elements were low and targeted to delivering revenue programmes which 

were identified by each council. The capital element of 10% was across the whole 
allocation. However, some projects could be allocated more capital funding but 
would need to be justified. 

 
The level of risk was queried should the Council not receive the funding and it was 

explained that the UKSPF was not a competitive bidding process. Each council had 
an amount of funding allocated, had to provide an outline investment plan 
apportioned to each intervention and would be required to demonstrate governance 

around each of its programmes. 
 

Assurance was given by Cabinet members that the Council would do its utmost to 
spend the full allocation of funding. There may be some risk to the projects not being 
completed within the associated time frame. 

 
Members were reminded of the webinar due to be held on 15 July 2022. 

 
DECIDED: The Panel NOTED progress on the preparation of the UKSPF 

Investment Plan submission to ensure that local priorities were 

represented where they would deliver some of the required 
interventions, outputs and outcomes. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 7.53 pm 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel  

Work Programme 2022/23 

 Date Item Contact 

Officer 

 

8 June 22     

 SMDC Play Strategy G Knapper  

13 July 22    

 Shared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan  L Hoyland  

    

28 Sep 22    

 Disabled Facilities Grants M Tower/M 

Trillo 

 

 Refreshed Sports & Physical Activity Strategy R Wilks  

2 Nov 22    

 Tourism Strategy N Lamb  

 AES Annual Performance Update   

 Refreshed Growth Strategy N Lamb  

 Leisure Facilities Improvement Plan and Operating Model 
Proposals 

R Wilks  

25 Jan 23    

 Parkwood Annual Performance Update   

1 Mar 23    

    

TBC   Status Update 

 Strategy for Development of Affordable & Specialist Housing N Lamb/H 
Core 

Update required 

 Management Plan for green spaces managed and maintained 

by SMDC (Cllr Yates) 

AES/N Kemp/ 

D Smith 

Nature Recovery Strategy to be developed first, 

followed by specific policies, including mowing and 
trees. Timeline to be confirmed.    

 Delivery of Business Units in the area (Cllr Yates) N Lamb Update required 

 Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document M James Autumn 2022 

 Conservation Area Appraisals M James Winter 2022 

 Climate Change Planning Guidance M James Due by March 2023 

 Mills Masterplan N Lamb  

 Leek Market Operations N Lamb  

 Outcome of Levelling Up Bid (Cllr K Jackson) N Lamb  

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 7



 
 

P
age 8



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

28 September 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

SMDC Refreshed Sports and Physical 
Activity Strategy 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Mark Deaville - Deputy Leader & 
Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Sports 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Robert Wilks - Principal Officer (Leisure and 

Recreation) 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 
(All Wards) 

 
 

Appendix A: Draft Move More Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to inform the Panel as to the work completed to 
develop the Move More Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy in replacement of 
the current Physical Activity and Sport Strategy. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel recommend that the 
Cabinet approve the Move More Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 In June 2017, the Cabinet approved a new physical activity and sport strategy 
called ‘Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands. The main focus of the 
strategy was to use an evidence based approach to enable the Council and 

other partners from across Staffordshire Moorlands to better support people to 
become more physically active. 

 
3.2 The strategy outlined five strategic objectives for focus, underpinned by 

partnership working and collaboration would be the key to having an impact in 

the future: 
 

The five strategic outcomes: 

1. Develop a strong local universal offer for sport and physical activity. 
Support the growth of the “core market” and local infrastructure for 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



  

physical activity and sport and encourage local organisations who 
support the already physically active to continue to thrive. 

2. Address participation inequalities, supporting the inactive to become 

physically active with a focus on:  

a. Women and girls  

b. People with a limiting illness or disability  

c. People aged 55 years and over  

d. Children and young people aged 5 to 18.  

e. Young People involved in antisocial behaviour and crime 

3. Establishing a ‘place based approach’ with strategic partners to improve 

the health and wellbeing of residents in the areas facing multiple 
challenges and deprivation. Initial focus areas will include:  

a. Leek (North) b. Biddulph (East) c. Cheadle d. Forsbrook  

e. Cellarhead  f. Endon.  

4. Maximise physical activity and sporting opportunities using the outdoor 

and natural environment.  

5. Supporting our existing club and voluntary sector base to build local 
capacity, strengthen their community offer, and encourage diversity.  

3.3 In May 2020, an Information Digest report was published to showcase 
progress of the work undertaken against the aspirations of the strategy, 

highlighting pieces of work which have been completed since 2017. 

3.4 Since the Information Digest was published in May 2020 and despite 
the challenges presented by the pandemic, the Council, together with 

its partners, has still been able to deliver a range of projects and pieces 
of work which contribute towards existing priorities; 

 

Key achievements 

 Over £1.2m of investment has been secured across the Moorlands 

into a range of capital projects; 

 A new Play Investment and Delivery Plan has been approved to 

ensure Council owned facilities continue to provide excellent spaces 
for young people to access, learn and be active;  

 More resources are being focused on the people and places 

identified in the Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands 
Strategy; 

 The Moorlands’ first full sized 3G artificial grass pitch has been 
installed at Harrison Park, home of Leek Town FC, including £100k 

contribution from the Council and over £500k secured from the 
Football Foundation;  

Page 10



  

 Place based roles have been established with the voluntary sector 
in Biddulph and Leek, which have produced new local opportunities, 
excellent case studies and valuable learning; 

 Improvement works to play and outdoor sports facilities have been 
completed in Brough Park, Leek; 

 Staffordshire Moorlands was selected as one of 3 pilot areas for the 
‘Better Health Staffordshire’ project - a whole systems approach 

which aims to promote a healthy weight and an active lifestyle; 

 Allocation of Outdoor Sports Capital Funding to projects in 
Waterhouses, Whiston, Endon, Leek. Further projects in Biddulph 

Moor and Upper Tean are currently in development; 

 Developed an ‘Active Communities Plans’ with Parkwood Leisure 

(Lex Leisure) to connect strategy priorities to local delivery via 
Council owned leisure facilities; 

 Submitted 3 applications containing ‘Leisure’ related projects to the 
Governments Levelling Up Fund (LUF).  
 

3.5 The existing leisure centres in the Staffordshire Moorlands are key assets and 
provide a range of opportunities for residents to engage in activities that 

positively impact of their physical and mental health. In developing this 
strategy, officers have been working with the operator of these facilities, 
Parkwood, to develop an ‘Active Communities Plan’. This plan details the 

approach and key actions that Parkwood will take with partners to engage 
more people from the priority groups and places identified in the Move More 

Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy. 

 Strategy refresh process 
 

3.6 The review of data for this refresh has included the latest Sport England Active 
Lives Survey (ALS), but has also included health data, particularly where 

connections can be made between less active groups that ALS identifies. The 
main focus for the review of data is detailed below;  

 Levels of inactivity across the adult population 

 Levels of inactivity in the children and young people population  

 Focus on any specific demographic groups who participate a least (eg 

55+, those with long term health conditions, those people from lower 
socio-economic groups, gender)  

 Public Health England data sources (borough level and specific to GP 
practices 

 

3.7 The aspiration is for this updated strategy to be more co-produced and, as 
such, officers have engaged a wide range of stakeholders in its development, 

to help position it as much as a strategy for the Council as it is wider partners 
working across the Moorlands. 

 

3.8 Existing meetings and forums along with two stakeholder engagement 
sessions were used to capture the views from a wide range of partners 

Page 11



  

including those from education, sport, health, voluntary and community, and 
public sectors. An online survey was also used capture the views of 
stakeholders and partners who were unable to attend the facilitated sessions 

and the key themes fed into the production process for the new strategy, 
which has been titled ‘Move More Staffordshire Moorlands’  

 
 Move More Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy 
 

3.9 Move More Staffordshire Moorlands (MMSM - Appendix A) is a ten year 
strategy that collectively reimagines how we move more every day. This 

strategy is an evolution of Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands (2017) 
and draws on experiences and learning from the intervening years, which 
includes the exceptional circumstances we all found ourselves in during the 

coronavirus pandemic. 
 

3.10 Once approved, the strategy sets the overall strategic direction for how the 
Council and partners focus resources. It is important for any new plan 
developed by the Council or partners align where possible to the agreed 

principles and priorities detailed in section 9.16 and 9.17. For example, 
Council related plans include: the Leisure Transformation Plan, Place based 

working plans, and the Local Football Facilities Plan (LFFP). 
 
3.11 Alongside stakeholder engagement, a review of current data relating to health, 

physical activity levels and deprivation (amongst others) has been reviewed to 
help identify what the main priorities of the MMSM strategy should be and the 
following six priorities have been jointly agreed: 

 
1. A collective message 

2. Place based working 
3. Better health 
4. Environments 

5. Universal offer  
6. Children and young people 

 
3.12 The principles of how we act and work together is vital if this shared strategy is 

going to continue to extend its reach and have a more positive impact on 

people’s lives. These principles are:  
 

1. Working and learning together 
2. Being evidence led 
3. Enabling opportunities for all 

4. Building on what is strong 
 

3.13 Implementation plans for each priority will be developed in due course and 
these will detail the headline actions we will take with partners to deliver the 
aim of the strategy. These plans present an opportunity for other relevant work 

streams, strategies and plans to be reflected, creating a more systemic 
approach to how all internal services and partners positively work together to 

help people to move more and maintain active habits. 
 
 How will we know if people are moving more 

Page 12



  

 
3.14 Learning taken from across the country and what we have experienced locally 

strongly suggests there isn’t a single way to measure whether people are 

moving more. The approaches below have been identified with partners and 
will build up a richer picture of not only the progress being made, but 

importantly which aspects are working, which aren’t and, how we will use this 
to evolve the approach: 

 

 A focus on learning 

 Ongoing review of data 

 Stories of change and case studies 
 

            Next steps  
 
3.15 Subject to approval, officers will complete further work to finalise the document 

ready for full release, including undertaking a copywriting process, final 
document design and creation (via an external company) of a ‘explainer’ video 

clip/animation, to be used with a range of stakeholders or colleagues to help 
confirm understanding and commitment. Implementation plans for each priority 
area will also be created with partners. 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 Aim 1 of the Council’s Corporate Plan (2019-2023) seeks to help create a 
safer and healthier environment our communities to live and work. Within this 

aim, there is an objective to review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in 
order to integrate communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its 

objectives 
 
5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 In effect, there are two options: 

 
1. The report sets out clearly the reasons why the existing strategy needs 

updating and therefore approval of the proposed Move More Staffordshire 

Moorlands Strategy should be recommended. 
 

2. To do nothing and not recommend the proposed Move More Staffordshire 
Moorlands Strategy is approved. 

 
6. Implications 

 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
Being physically active and playing sport can contribute towards 

encouraging positive behaviour and in diverting people away from 
antisocial behaviour and crime.  
 

6.2 Workforce 
 

There are no workforce implications as it proposed that the 

Page 13



  

Council’s current staff resource will manage delivery of the 
strategy. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 

As outlined in the associated EIA document.  
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 

 
There are no financial considerations. 

 
6.5 Legal 

 

There are no legal implications. 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
Encouraging people to move more can have a positive benefit on 

the environment, such as encouraging people to walk and cycle 
instead of using a motor car. 

 
6.7 
 

Consultation 
 

There are no requirements for the Council to formally consult on 
the refresh of this strategy.  
 

Stakeholder consultation and engagement has been undertaken in 
order to involve stakeholders in the development of the strategy.  

 
6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 

None required. 

 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy:  
 

Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy, 
Information Digest May 2020 
 

Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy, 
Information Digest July 2022 
 

 

Robert Wilks 
Principal Officer (Leisure and Recreation) 

robert.wilks@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
7. Detail 

 

7.1 In June 2017, the Cabinet approved a new physical activity and sport strategy 
called ‘Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands’. The main focus of the 

strategy was to use an evidence based approach to enable the Council and 

Page 14

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/2766/SM-Physical-Activity-Strategy/pdf/Active_Staffs_Strategy_document_online_version.pdf?m=1513160370040
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/g2233/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-May-2020%2010.00%20Information%20Digest%20SMDC.pdf?T=10-
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/g2233/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-May-2020%2010.00%20Information%20Digest%20SMDC.pdf?T=10-
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s30101/Staffordshire%20Moorlands%20Physical%20Activity%20and%20Sport%20Strategy%20Refresh.pdf
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s30101/Staffordshire%20Moorlands%20Physical%20Activity%20and%20Sport%20Strategy%20Refresh.pdf


  

other partners from across Staffordshire Moorlands to better support people to 
become more physically active. 

 

7.2 The strategy was developed in order to be the catalyst for change. It intended 
to frame an understanding that physical activity levels of people and 

communities do not stand in isolation, but are interconnected to many other 
influencing factors that affect everyone’s life, and that this needs to be better 
understood if there is to be a positive impact on activity levels.  

 
7.3 The strategy outlined five strategic objectives for focus, underpinned by 

partnership working and collaboration, which would be the key to having an 
impact in the future: 

 

The five strategic outcomes: 

1) Develop a strong local universal offer for sport and physical activity. 

Support the growth of the “core market” and local infrastructure for physical 
activity and sport and encourage local organisations who support the 
already physically active to continue to thrive. 

2) Address participation inequalities, supporting the inactive to become 
physically active with a focus on:  

a. Women and girls  

b. People with a limiting illness or disability  

c. People aged 55 years and over  

d. Children and young people aged 5 to 18.  

e. Young People involved in antisocial behaviour and crime 

3) Establishing a ‘place based approach’ with strategic partners to improve 

the health and wellbeing of residents in the areas facing multiple 
challenges and deprivation. Initial focus areas will include:  

a. Leek (North) b. Biddulph (East) c. Cheadle d. Forsbrook  

e. Cellarhead f. Endon.  

4) Maximise physical activity and sporting opportunities using the outdoor and 

natural environment.  

5) Supporting our existing club and voluntary sector base to build local 

capacity, strengthen their community offer, and encourage diversity.  

7.5  In May 2020, an Information Digest report was published to showcase 
progress of the work undertaken against the aspirations of the strategy, 

highlighting pieces of work which have been completed since 2017.  

7.6 Since this Information Digest was published, the world has been affected in an 

unprecedented way by the Covid19 pandemic. Restrictions placed on the 

Page 15



  

whole population meant that, overnight, people’s ability to access physical 
activity opportunities changed and some of us found it difficult more difficult 
than others to maintain our active habits. 

7.7 During the pandemic, the importance of positive health and wellbeing was 
being emphasised on a national level almost every day. The view that 

everyone doing that little bit more was good for our physical and mental health 
helped to enable conversations locally that we may never have had pre 
pandemic, particularly with health organisations.   

7.8 It was noticed that the angle of these conversations was very different to the 
angle we may have used with existing partners pre-pandemic. The shift from 

‘people being physically active and playing sport’ to ‘moving more to benefit 
people’s health and wellbeing’ was a clear change. If we are to hold onto this 
and build more effective relationships with these partners, this shift in 

language and focus needs to be recognised sufficiently in the refresh of the 
strategy. 

 Key achievements 

7.9 Since the Information Digest was published in May 2020 and despite the 
challenges presented by the pandemic, the Council, together with its partners, 

has still been able to deliver a range of projects and pieces of work which 
contribute towards existing priorities: 

 Over £1.2m of investment has been secured across the Moorlands into 
a range of capital projects; 

 A new Play Investment and Delivery Plan has been approved to 

ensure Council owned facilities continue to provide excellent spaces 
for young people to access, learn and be active;  

 The Moorlands’ first full sized 3G artificial grass pitch has been 
installed at Harrison Park, home of Leek Town FC, including £100k 

contribution from the Council and over £500k secured from the Football 
Foundation;  
 

 More resources are being focused on the people and places identified 
in the Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy; 

 Place based roles have been established with the voluntary sector in 
Biddulph and Leek, which have produced new local opportunities, 
excellent case studies and valuable learning; 

 Improvement works to play and outdoor sports facilities have been 
completed in Brough Park, Leek; 

 Staffordshire Moorlands was selected as one of 3 pilot areas for the 
‘Better Health Staffordshire’ project - a whole systems approach which 

aims to promote a healthy weight and an active lifestyle; 

 The Council has allocated Outdoor Sports Capital Funding to projects 

Page 16



  

in Waterhouses, Whiston, Endon, Leek. Further projects in Biddulph 
Moor and Upper Tean are currently in development; 

 Developed an ‘Active Communities Plans’ with Parkwood Leisure (Lex 

Leisure) to connect strategy priorities to local delivery via Council 
owned leisure facilities; 

 Submitted 3 applications containing ‘Leisure’ related projects to the 
Government’s Levelling Up Fund (LUF). 

7.10 The existing leisure centres in the Staffordshire Moorlands are key assets and 

provide a range of opportunities for residents to engage in activities that 
positively impact on their physical and mental health. In developing this 

strategy, officers have been working with the operator of these facilities, 
Parkwood, to develop an ‘Active Communities Plan’. This plan details the 
approach and key actions that Parkwood will take with partners to engage 

more people from the priority groups and places identified in the Move More 
Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy.  

7.11 The reason for developing this plan is to encourage the centres to look beyond 
their existing customer base and, by doing so, widen the reach and 
contribution that the staff, teams and assets make to the places and people we 

know are less likely to use them. By working differently and in collaboration 
with new partners, the learning taken from this approach will help enrich, refine 

and deliver more effective services in the future that more fully reflect local 
need. 

7.12 Proposals contained within the corresponding report to the Cabinet set out the 

proposed investment options and future delivery model for the leisure centres. 
It is important that future investment and service delivery of the leisure centres 

is fully aligned to the Move More Staffordshire Moorlands Strategy.  

8. Strategy refresh process 

8.1  Typically, the Sport England Active Lives Survey (ALS) has been the main 

source of data we have used to inform strategic direction when it comes to 
levels of physical activity, including when the current strategy developed in 

2017. The review of data for this refresh has included the latest ALS, but has 
also included health data, particularly where connections can be made 
between less active groups that ALS identifies. The main focus for the review 

of data is detailed below:  

 Levels of inactivity across the adult population 

 Levels of inactivity in the children and young people population  

 Focus on any specific demographic groups who participate least (e.g. 

55+, those with long term health conditions, those people from lower 
socio-economic groups, gender)  

 Public Health England data sources (district level and specific to GP 

practices 

Page 17



  

8.2 The current strategy was primarily approved as a Council strategy, but with a 
call to action for other partners in the Staffordshire Moorlands to contribute 
towards the delivery of the priorities identified. The aspiration is for this 

updated strategy to be more co-produced. As such, officers have engaged 
with a wide range of stakeholders in its development, to help position it as 

much as a strategy for the Council as it is for wider partners across the 
Moorlands. 

8.3 There are various conversation spaces already established for partners across 

the district to collaborate. Officers used these to help inform the review along 
with coordinating two stakeholder engagement sessions that were facilitated 

working jointly with Together Active. The sessions captured views from a wide 
range of partners including those from the education, sport, health, voluntary 
and community, and public sectors.  

8.4 An online survey was also used to capture the views of wider stakeholders 
and partners who were unable to attend the facilitated sessions and the key 

themes taken from this approach fed into the production process for the new 
strategy, which has been titled ‘Move More Staffordshire Moorlands’   

9. Move More Staffordshire Moorlands 

9.1 As previously outlined, the Move More Staffordshire Moorlands (MMSM) 
Strategy is a ten year strategy that collectively reimagines how we move more 

every day – from walking and gardening to being active at the gym or playing 
sport.  

9.2 This strategy (Appendix A) is an evolution of Towards an Active Staffordshire 

Moorlands (2017) and draws on experiences and learning from the intervening 
years, which includes the exceptional circumstances we all found ourselves in 
during the coronavirus pandemic. A time when some people found it more 

difficult than others to maintain our active habits. 

9.3 The refresh of this strategy sits in context with a new national strategy, 

launched by Sport England in 2021. ‘Uniting the Movement’ highlights 5 big 
issues;  

Recover and reinvent - Recovering from the biggest crisis in a 

generation and reinventing as a vibrant, relevant and sustainable 
network of organisations providing sport and physical activity 

opportunities that meet the needs of different people.  

Connecting Communities - Sport and physical activity’s ability to 

make better places to live and bring people together.  

Positive experiences for children and young people - An 

unrelenting focus on positive experiences for all children and young 

people as the foundations for a long and healthy life.  

Connecting with health and wellbeing - Strengthening the 

connections between sport, physical activity, health and wellbeing, so 

more people can feel the benefits of, and advocate for, an active life.  

Page 18



  

Active environments - Creating and protecting the places and spaces 

that make it easier for people to be active. 

9.4 This national driver provides an essential context for understanding the picture 

in Staffordshire Moorlands and where the same priorities exist, use them to 
help facilitate even greater engagement in the future with public health 

partners, education, business sectors and potential funders.  
 
9.5 The diagram below summarises how government strategy feeds through to 

Sport England strategy which then connects to the MMSM Strategy; 
 

 
 
9.6 As a new Strategy that is responsible for setting the overall strategic direction 

for how the Council and partners focus resources, it is important for any new 
plan developed by the Council to align where possible to the agreed principles 
and priorities set out in the MMSM Strategy. For example, the Leisure 

Transformation Plan, Place based working plans, Local Football Facilities Plan 
(LFFP).  

Local data review  

9.3 Data from the latest Sport England Active Lives Survey (ALS Nov 20/21) 
suggests that 6 in 10 adults (63%) across the Staffordshire Moorlands are 

active enough for it to benefit their health, which means doing more than 150 
minutes of physical activity a week. This is positive and collectively we need to 

retain our focus and resources towards helping people maintain this habit.  

9.4 As shown in the graphic below, over 2 in 10 adults are inactive (25%), which 
means doing less than 30 minutes of physical activity a week. And over 1 in 10 

adults are doing no physical activity at all each week (15%). In the Moorlands 
that equates to approximately 12,000 people, a figure that has risen during the 

Page 19



  

pandemic. 

 

9.5 Whilst active habits are positive, this level of inactivity hides distinct 
inequalities within our population. For example, within our younger adult 

population, just over 2 in 10 are inactive (22%), but this rises as we age, 
particularly once we pass the age of 55, where inactivity is over 3 in 10 adults 
(33%).   

9.6 There is much cross over between aging and experiencing a limiting illness or 
disability, with 80% of people who have a long-term health condition or 

disability aged over 50 years (Census 2011). Inactivity among this part of our 
population is almost as high as 5 in 10 (46%). 

9.7 The table below summarises the most prevalent long term health conditions 

which exist in the Moorlands when considering data from Primary Care 
Network, taken from National General Practice Profiles and Public Health 

Outcomes Framework. Under the ‘Better Health’ priority outlined in 9.17 of this 
report, it is proposed that the Council together with relevant health 
organisations work collaboratively to explore how movement and physical 

activity could support people living with these conditions, thus working more 
effectively towards the aspiration of people moving more. 

Indicator 
Leek and 
Biddulph PCN 

Moorlands 
Rural PCN 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

Staffs England 
 

Hypertension 
prevalence 

18.6% 19.5% 19% 16% 14.1% 
 

Diabetes prevalence 8.0% 8.1 8% 8% 7% 
 

Depression: Recorded 
prevalence  

13.5% 12.8% 

  

11.6% 
 

% reporting a long-
term mental health 
problem 

14.4% 11% 11% 
 

% reporting a long-
term MSK problem 

24.5% 19.4% 24.4% 22.4% 18.6% 
 

Back Pain prevalence 
in people of all ages 

  

18.8% 18.1% 16.9% 
 

Hip Osteoarthritis (in 
people aged 45 and 
older) 

11.2% 10.7% 10.9%  

Knee Osteoarthritis (in  

Page 20



  

people aged 45 and 
older) 

18.8% 18.6% 18.2% 
 

Red – Worse than England Orange – Similar to England Green – Better 

than England  Grey – No data available 

9.8 Staffordshire Moorlands has higher than average levels of obesity in certain 

age bands as highlighted in the table below. Again, by understanding this data 
and the complexities as to the systemic causes of obesity, the contribution of 
movement and physical activity could be more effectively aligned to help 

support the work to encourage healthier and more active choices.   

 

 

9.9 Those people on lower incomes also experience higher levels of inactivity, 
with almost 3 in 10 adults inactive (28%). Where the three characteristics of 
ageing, limiting illness or disability and low socio-economic status come 

together, inactivity is likely to be higher still. These groups are summarised 
below.  

 

9.10 Collection methods and measures for data relating to children and young 
people’s activity levels are different to that of adults, and across the district we 
do not always have a sufficiently large enough sample for detailed analysis 

relating to young people’s active habits.  

  
Indicator 

Staffordshire 
Moorlands  

Staffordshire England 

Reception Excess 
Weight Prevalence 

24% 25% 23% 

Reception Obesity 
Prevalence 

10% 10% 10% 

Year 6 Excess Weight 
Prevalence 

34% 34% 35% 

Year 6 Obesity 
Prevalence 

18% 20% 20% 

Adult Excess Weight 
and Obesity Prevalence 

67% 67% 63% 

 

Page 21



  

9.11 The data we do have suggests that more than half of our children and young 
people are not active enough for it to benefit their health and development. 
Children in school years 3 and 4, young people in school years 9 to 11 and 

children from lower income families are far less likely to be active. We also see 
fewer girls being active than boys.  

 

9.12 Where we live also makes a difference to activity levels and the map below 
shows clusters of neighbourhoods around Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek where 
inactivity is greatest. It is proposed that place based working continues as a 

priority and where there is opportunity, expanded, particularly with a focus on 
Cheadle. 

 

9.13 This insight suggests that along with supporting people to maintain their active 

habits, there are specific population groups and places which collectively we 
should focus proportionately more time and resources towards engaging if we 

are to have a positive effect on the inactive data. These groups are 
summarised below; 

Page 22



  

 People with a limiting illness or disability 

 Older people 

 People and families on lower incomes 

 Children and young people 

9.14 An interactive data map of Staffordshire Moorlands containing the data 

presented above, along with other data such as GP (most prevalent health 
conditions), leisure centre membership and deprivation is currently in 

development. This interactive map will enable the Council and its partners to 
review data that is most relevant and layer this help to inform future areas of 
work and where collaboration and investment might be needed most. It will 

also help identify whether existing resources are prioritised in the areas of 
greatest need. 

 Shared Principles  
 
9.15 Developed collaboratively and at the heart of the new strategy, is a set of four 

shared principles defined to guide how partners across the Staffordshire 
Moorlands intend to act when working together to implement the strategy: 

 
1. Working and learning together 
2. Being evidence led 

3. Enabling opportunities for all 
4. Building on what is strong 

 
 Shared priorities 
 

9.16 Insight gathered from the data review, learning from what has happened over 
the last 5 years and feedback from the stakeholder engagement process when 

developing this strategy, has identified 6 priorities that we believe can make 
the biggest difference in terms of influencing activity levels. 

 

9.17 Within each of these shared priorities, the strategy proposes the Council 
focusses its energy and resources on the people and places identified within 

this strategy as being in greatest need:  
 

1. A collective message 

2. Place based working 
3. Better health 

4. Environments 
5. Universal offer  
6. Children and young people 

 
9.18  It is proposed that implementation plans for each priority will be developed in 

due course and that these detail the headline actions we will take with partners 
to deliver the aim of the strategy. These plans will present an opportunity for 
other relevant work streams, strategies and plans to be reflected, helping to 

create a more systemic approach to how all internal services and partners 

Page 23



  

positively impact on how likely people are to move more and maintain active 
habits.  

 
10. How we will know if people are moving more 
 

10.1 Learning taken from across the country and what we have experienced locally 
strongly suggests there isn’t a single way to measure whether people are 
moving more. The approaches below have been identified with partners and 

will build up a richer picture of not only the progress being made, but 
importantly which aspects are working, which aren’t and how we will use this 

to evolve the approach: 
 

 A focus on learning 

 Ongoing review of data 

 Stories of change and case studies 

 
 A focus on learning 

 
10.2  How we learn with partners and understand what contributes to change at 

system, organisational and community level, will be central to how we support 

people to move more.  We will think about learning from the process as well as 
about the change created (whether positive or negative). By bringing together 

a range of approaches we will look at things from as many perspectives as 
possible, to ensure our learning is rich and reflects what is happening between 
organisations and in the community, using this to help inform decision making 

and investment. 
 

 Ongoing review of data 
 
10.3 The Council together with its partners will use a diverse range of population 

data to help explore and understand local needs, particularly where priority 
groups, places and related health conditions are concerned. The ongoing 

review of population level data will be complemented by other more local 
sources of data such as leisure centre, programme and intervention data to 
inform learning, action, quality and the contribution to the overall aim of people 

moving more we are making. 
 

10.4 To help ensure the focus remains on people and places which need it most, 
we will use data to help to observe what change might be occurring over time, 
drawing out patterns and trends which will help us understand what is working, 

not working. Where it is relevant and appropriate to monitor attendances, we 
will do so, but recognise we should only count what needs to be counted. 

 
  
 

 Stories of change and case studies 
 
10.5 We will observe what change is happening at system, organisational and 

community level and use stories and case studies to help explain what factors 
have contributed towards that change. This detail will be built from a range of 

perspectives, so that what is collected can help shape collective learning and 

Page 24



  

influence our future approach. This approach will bring the work to life, using 
case studies to positively influence others. 

 

10.6 Future reports containing a summary of the progress made towards delivery of 
the strategy, reflecting the learning, any changes to local data (positive or 

negative) and stories of change will be provided at appropriate milestones.  
 
11. Next steps  

 

11.1 As outlined in section 9.18, implementation plans will be developed once 

approval of the MMSM Strategy is confirmed and this will involve creative 
spaces being organised where a range of partners can collaborate around 
each priority identified in the strategy. Key actions that we collectively need to 

take will be detailed, along with how resources should be allocated or secured, 
the timescales associated to these and any outcome measure that will be 

captured to help demonstrate impact  
 
11.2 Subject to approval, officers will complete further work to finalise the document 

ready for full release, including undertaking a copywriting process, final 
document design and creation (via an external company) of a ‘explainer’ video 

clip/animation, to be used with a range of stakeholders or colleagues to help 
confirm understanding and commitment. 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Move More Staffordshire Moorlands 
A movement strategy for the Staffordshire Moorlands 

 
Together, our aim is for everyone across the Staffordshire Moorlands to move more every 
day and within this, to provide greater support to those that need it most. 
 
When we say 'we' and 'our', we mean our collective work, including integrated health and 
care, voluntary and community organisations, young people services and education, 
wellbeing, sport, leisure, transport, housing, environment, community safety and planning, 
to name a few. 
 

 
Move More Staffordshire Moorlands is our ten year strategy to collectively reimagine how 

we move more every day – from walking and gardening to being active at the gym or 
playing sport. 

 
This strategy is an evolution of Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands (2017) and draws 

on our experiences and learning from the intervening years, which includes the exceptional 
circumstances we all found ourselves in during the coronavirus pandemic.  A time when 

some of us found it difficult to maintain our active habits. 
 

Across the Moorlands, many of us are fortunate enough to enjoy an active life.  We benefit 
from living in such proximity to beautiful natural environments, our populated towns are 
important hubs which draw us in and connect us, and our vibrant voluntary and community 
sector support us to keep healthy and active.  For those of us that wish to, there are plenty 
of opportunities to enjoy organised sporting and physical activities from within our leisure, 

sport and club infrastructure, who also play a vital role in helping us to maintain our active 
habits. 

 
But this experience is not the same for us all.  Inequalities exist and persist, and in some 

cases, have been made worse by the pandemic.  It is this unfairness that we want to address 
together through this strategy.  An unfairness that affects the same groups of people, living 

in the same places, across other outcomes such as health, wealth, and access to services . 
 

These inequalities are intertwined, often feeding off each other, and is why this strategy is 
equally a strategy for reducing health inequalities as it is for reducing inactivity. We may 

experience up to 10 years difference in the number of years we can expect to live in good 
health, dependent on where we live in the Moorlands, or dependent on our relative wealth.  
We want to make this basic expectation more equitable across our society and believe that 
supporting us all to move more every day is one of the keys to achieving this.   
 
This is a collaborative strategy that will see partners working closely together and bringing a 
wide range of influences to the work.  Together we will use our shared resources to 

proportionately focus on the people and neighbourhoods that experience the greatest 
need, so that we can collectively achieve the greatest impact.  At the same time, we will 
work collectively to sustain and develop the infrastructure and opportunities for people 

Page 27



 2 

who are currently active to remain so, and to make these accessible to more people in the 
Moorlands. 
 
Being active helps more than just individuals. It benefits communities and wider society and 
has a knock-on effect on the economy and the environment. Through physical activity: 

1. People become healthier, happier, and more fulfilled 
2. Communities are more equal, connected and feel safer 

3. Society is more equal, with empathy, effort and resources being invested in the right 
places 

4. Environments encourage movement, are welcoming, highly valued and are less 
polluted 

 
However, there are lots of challenges that mean some of us are less active than others. By 

understanding these challenges, together we can decide how best to make a difference. 

Shifting all the influences 

The following diagram helps us to think about the many and varied ways in which the whole 
system influences individual behaviour.  Over the past five years, growth in our partnership 
has been engineered by shifting our approach to encompass many more influences.  
Recognising that if we are to bring about change, collaboration is needed across the whole 
eco-system of people and organisations that can contribute. 

 

  

Individual

Social 
environment

Organisations
and Institutions

Physical 
environment

Policy

Cultural norms 
and mindsets

Adapted from the Socio-Ecological Model by Hayley Lever and Scott Hartley   

Individual capabilities, motivations, opportunities, knowledge, 
needs, behaviours, physical and mental health and wellbeing

Language, myths, metaphors, stories, hierarchy of values, 
know how, assumptions, imagery

International and national guidance and laws, local laws and 
policies, rules, regulations, codes, times and schedules

Built environment, natural environment, green and blue 
spaces, transport networks, homes

Schools, health care, businesses, faith organisations, charities, clubs

Individual relationships, families, support groups, social networks

Page 28



 3 

Identifying the need 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6 in 10 adults (63%) across the Moorlands are active enough for it to benefit their health, 
which means doing more than 150 minutes of physical activity a week. 
 

However, over 2 in 10 adults are inactive (25%)1 across the Moorlands, which means doing 
less than 30 minutes of physical activity a week.  And over 1 in 10 adults are doing no 

physical activity at all in each week (15%).  That’s approximately 12,000 people, a figure that 
has risen during the pandemic. 

 

 
This level of inactivity hides distinct inequalities within our population.  For example, within 
our younger adult population, just over 2 in 10 are inactive (22%), but this rises as we age, 
particularly once we pass the age of 55, where inactivity is over 3 in 10 adults (33%).   
 
There is much cross over between aging and experiencing a limiting illness or disability.  80% 
of people with a long-term health condition or disability are aged over 50 years (Census 
2011). Inactivity among this part of our population in the Moorlands is almost as high as 5 in 
10 (46%). 

 
Those of us on lower incomes2 in the Moorlands also experience higher levels of inactivity 
with almost 3 in 10 adults inactive (28%).  And where the three characteristics of ageing, 
limiting illness or disability and low socio-economic status come together, inactivity is likely 

to be higher still. 

                                                 
1
 Sport England’s Active Lives Survey (Adults) 2020/21 

2
 The term ‘lower income’ is used throughout this strategy to describe people in NS SeC 6 -8 groups, also 

commonly termed as lower socio-economic groups 

Our insight tells us that across the Moorlands, the greatest need in terms of inactivity is 
evident in these groups: 
 

 People with a limiting illness or disability 
 Older people 

 People and families on lower incomes 
 Children and young people 

 
Through this strategy we will proportionately focus our resources on these groups in 
greatest need, while maintaining opportunities for all. 

Page 29



 4 

 

  
 

Where we live makes a difference too.  Inactivity, in parallel with wider health outcomes, 
varies greatly between neighbourhoods across the Moorlands and this has been the basis 

for our shared place based working approaches.  The inactivity map below shows clusters of 
neighbourhoods around Cheadle, Biddulph and Leek where inactivity is greatest. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 30



 5 

When it comes to the activities that adults do to be active, Walking, for travel and for 
leisure, is the activity that contributes the most minutes. It accounts for nearly half (48%) of 
all minutes being active in the Moorlands. Gardening makes the second largest contribution 
(22% of all minutes) followed by Traditional Sport3 (16% of all minutes). 

 
Source: Sport England, Active Lives Adults, Nov 20-21 

 
 
More than half of our children and young people are not active enough for it to benefit 
their health and development.4   
 
Data collection methods and measures for children and young people’s activity levels are 
different to that of adults, and across the Moorlands we do not always have a sufficiently 
large enough sample for detailed analysis.  However, we know that our children in school 
years 3 and 4, our young people in school years 9 to 11 and children from lower income 

families are far less likely to be active.  We also see fewer girls being active than boys. 

 

                                                 
3
 Traditional Sport is all minutes from sports l ike swimming, running, football, rugby, cricket, tennis, hockey, 

golf, canoeing, rock climbing etc. 
4
 Due to low sample sizes of Staffordshire Moorlands  children and young people data, we have combined four 

years of data (ALCYP 2017-2021) to identify groups in the greatest need.   

22%

16%

8%
6%

41%

7%

Gardening

Traditional sport

Fitness activities

All cycling

Walking for leisure

Walking for travel

Page 31



 6 

How the last strategy has helped move us forward 

 
Over the last five years a growing range of partners across the Moorlands have been 
working to help ‘all residents lead more active lives. Towards an Active Staffordshire 
Moorlands, provided the framework and policy context to shape this work as partners 
including the District Council sought to take forward its intentions. Outlined below are some 
of the key moments that helped to take the work of the previous strategy forward and that 
have provided us with learning around what’s needed now. 

 

 

  

2
0

1
7

Production of 
Open Space & 
Playing Pitch 
strategies

2
0

1
8

Local Football Facilities 
Plan published

‘Towards an Active Staffs 
Moorlands’ published

Provided the impetus for Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council to start to 
shift the way that it approached sport, 
leisure and physical activity.

Start of place-based working in Leek North

The journey…

Parkwood leisure 
continue contract in the 
Moorlands

Aligning the operator over both Staffordshire Moorlands and 
High Peak local authorities helps improve their community 
engagement

Improvement work at Tean Road Recreation 
Ground commences 

These, along with the physical activity strategy, give 

the evidence base for the work and investment 
that’s now happening.

Provided  further evidence base for the 
work and investment required.

In collaboration with Sport Across Staffordshire & Stoke On Trent 
(SASSOT), worked commenced on community engagement at a 
neighbourhood level work

Investment committed to start work on improving the leisure and play 
facilities including the skate park, tennis courts and multi-use games 
area

Additional staff resource at Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council Leisure and Recreation team

Pandemic starts and impacts on people’s roles, 
priorities and capacity 

2
0

2
0

‘Community Activators’ are employed in Leek North 
& Biddulph East

Pandemic increases walking 
demand from communities

2
0

1
9

Policy process aligned to make use of 
investment from housing developers

Review of roles at Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council

Start of collaborative work in Biddulph East

Approval of the Leisure 
Transformation plan

£
Enabling the team to contribute to all planning applications and request 

developer contributions to channel resource into the strategy. Establishes 
a more holistic approach to planning, enabling Active Design.

Investment into Biddulph Youth & Community Zone (BYCZ) to 
instigate place based working approach in the local area.

Parks, leisure, sport and population health all drawn together into a new role. 
Greater capacity established and budgets realigned to provide greater investment 
around health and physical activity.

Securing investment into the redevelopment of leisure centres and setting 

out a broader contribution to their communities

While the pandemic disrupts planning, engagement and delivery, it also helps 
to strengthen support of the Voluntary and Community sector – with resident-
led and mutual aid groups supporting each other. 

Increase capacity across the district to support the breadth of work on the strategy 

and support place-based working

Investment from the district council enables the employment of part time 
activators to lead the work in these two communities

Residents lead the demand for additional walking opportunities, creating an 

investment shift into walking among partners

‘SASSOT’ changes legal status to a charity and 
rebrands as ‘Together Active’

Alignment of major partner to be more focused on helping people to 

move more

2
0

2
1

Delivery of improvements to Brough Park 
commences

Better Healthier Staffordshire initiated

Engagement work in Cheadle commences

2
0

2
2

Continued support of the place-based work
in Cheadle, Leek and Biddulph

Partnership funding enables greater 
collaboration with Leek Town FC

Walking Movement work commences with 
investment into capacity to lead the work

New strategies from Sport 
England & Together Active

Placed based working network established 

Active communities plan established with 
Parkwood Leisure

Play & Outdoor Sport Investment Plan 
launched

The long-awaited development of the park starts with improvements to play 

area, tennis courts, multi-use games area. Reaffirming place-based working with an initial emphasis on parks and 
football improvements that enables relationship building between 
district and town councils.

Staffordshire Moorlands selected as a pilot area for a Whole System 

Approach to tackling obesity across the district. This work is 
connecting into the place-based working.

The investment helped the club to convert their grass pitch to 3G 
which has enable wider community usage.

Staffordshire-wide physical activity strategy published connecting to 
Sport England’s national, Uniting the Movement strategy 

Capacity secured through the district council to build networks to improve 

walking for everyone. Health Walks initiated early in the work.

A collaboration to align their engagement work to place based working 
and taking the leisure centre’s offer beyond the walls of the centre.

Providing a space to share knowledge and learn together about the different 
approaches.

Providing the missing part of the jigsaw that connects a range of different 
policies and strategies around helping people to move more.

Each area is continuing with developing their place based 

approach in different ways providing learning to inform future 
work.

Birchall playing fields investment

Investment secured to redevelop running track, create a perimeter 
path and create an outdoor fitness area

Page 32



 7 

The experience over the previous five years, including adapting to a global pandemic, has 
impacted and provided learning and value that now underpin Move More Staffordshire 
Moorlands: 

 Partners have invested significantly over the previous 5 years and will continue to do 
so 

 Over £1.2m of investment secured across the Moorlands into capital projects 
in 2020 and 2021. This includes £100,000 being invested in rural communities  

 Significant leisure transformation commitments have been made to review 
council leisure facilities and ensure their provision meets the needs of local 

communities. 
 The network of partners has widened and is now connected to a broader range of 

policy areas that are contributing to helping all Moorlands residents to move more.  
Work continues to place voluntary, community and social enterprise partners  at the 

heart of our place based work 
 More resources are being focused on the parts of our community that require more 

support in line with the priority groups and places identified in the last strategy 
 Investment into place based approaches have been established at a neighborhood 

level that is seeking to: 
 Bring smaller community organisations and residents into creating the 

change in their communities 
 Providing opportunities for partners across our places to experience 

collaboration around physical activity 
 Secured capacity at a local level to continue to bring partners together in 

these neighborhoods to drive change 
 Identified characteristics of what a place based approach may need to look 

like going forward: 
 United around shared goals 
 Working on system change across a place together 
 Proportionately focused on some of the neighborhoods where need is 

greater. 
 
All of this experience, along with various engagement opportunities, have helped to shape 
Move More Staffordshire Moorlands intentions. These intentions reflect the views of a much 

broader network of partners than was possible for Towards an Active Staffordshire 
Moorlands and will help to take this strategy forward over the coming years. 

  

Page 33



 8 

Shared principles (the way we want to act) 
Our strategy is built around a collaborative approach.  We are united around a shared vision 
and are aligning ourselves towards the same shared priorities.  At the heart of this united 
approach are our ways of working and we’ve set out four shared principles for how we 
intend to act. 

1. Working and learning together 
2. Being evidence led 
3. Enabling opportunities for all 
4. Building on what is strong 

 
Working and learning together  
We will spend time building shared purpose and trusted relationships across the wider 
system including health, planning, regeneration, community safety, education, and 
transport.  We aim for this work to influence senior buy-in to result in the inclusion of 
physical activity into: 
 

 The strategies of broader partners 

 Commissioning practices that promote people moving more and address 
inequalities 

 The utilisation of funding opportunities (Towns Fund, Levelling Up etc) to connect 
physical activity into strategic work. 

 
Our existing learning has helped to shape this strategy and the ways in which we have 
evolved different approaches to our work.  We will continue to use our joint experiences to 
learn together and refine those approaches as we go. 
 

We will support community groups, clubs, volunteers and coaches to develop approaches 
and skills that align with collaborative ways of working, so that our collective efforts result in 

a healthier, happier more connected and equal society for everyone across the Moorlands. 
 

Being evidence led 
We aim to use existing and create new insight and learning to develop a deeper 
understanding of people and neighbourhoods across the Moorlands.  Our focus will be on 
identifying and working alongside people and places that are most likely to experience 
greater disadvantage, inactivity and poor health outcomes, ensuring our work is empathetic 
to lived experience. 
 
We will continue to learn from our past and ongoing work and that of others, creating 
spaces to share, reflect and collaborate with a wide range of partners.  And jointly find ways 
to demonstrate how communities that move more, positively impact wider economic, 
health and social outcomes.  
 
Enabling opportunities for all 

We will aim to support everyone across the Moorlands to access opportunities to be active 
in the way that suits them whether that’s through playing sport or taking a walk. However, 
we are acutely aware that not everyone has equal access to these opportunities.  This 

strategy builds a fairer approach, that not only proportionately focuses our capacity and 

Page 34



 9 

resources on the people and neighbourhoods that need it most, but also addresses any 
systemic barriers that may be present. 
 
 

 
Adapted from original by @CRA1G 

 
Together, a wide range of partners will work collaboratively to pool and align our resources 

so that we may collectively achieve the greatest impact.  We will use this strategy to 
influence policy and seek to bring new external investment into the Moorlands to enhance 

the delivery of the strategy.  
 

Building on what is strong  
Our place based work will continue to emphasise the assets of people and communities, 

alongside their needs.  We will build on the assets found in these communities and support 
individuals and organisations to come together to realise and develop their strengths.  At 
the heart of this community-led approach is people and communities ‘owning’ the change 
they are trying to create by being involved and feeling empowered.  Recognising that 
everyone and every place will have a unique set of skills and capacities, we will  facilitate the 

work to be co-produced at neighbourhood level and use our collective influence to remove 
barriers and help make change happen. 

 
Across the Moorlands we have great strength and relationships within and across our 

community and voluntary sector.  Driven by local people, their passion and enthusiasm 
provide countless opportunities for many of us to be active and this strategy will continue to 

support this work. 
 

Alongside this, we have worked hard to embed our vision of enabling everyone to move 
more every day within leisure, sport, facilities, and park strategies and plans across the 

Moorlands.  We are now well positioned through these strategies to enable investment into 
our leisure centres, community facilities, playing pitches and recreational facilities that are 

so important to people moving more.  

Page 35



 10 

Shared priorities (the things we want to do) 
Our insight and experiences from our place based working have highlighted some clear 
opportunities and areas of focus, where we believe we can make the biggest difference by 
addressing inequalities and enabling people to move more.  These are cross-cutting 
priorities with interconnecting themes.  It’s complex and we need to understand and 
embrace this.  We’ve set out six shared priorities: 
 

1. A collective message 
2. Place based working 
3. Better health 
4. Environments 
5. Universal offer  
6. Children and young people 

 
Within each of these shared priorities, we will focus our energy and resources on the people 
and places identified within this strategy as being in greatest need. 
 

A collective message  
 

Together, we will develop a collective voice that publicly unifies our shared approach.  The 
Move More messages will resonate as much within health and care, education and planning 

as they will within leisure facilities or across our work with the voluntary sector and in 
communities.  We will use this shared voice to communicate our actions, our learning, and 

our progress. 
 

While the benefits of physical activity for people living with long term conditions are well 
established, we know that the fear of worsening long term problems commonly stop people 

from moving more and can make many healthcare professionals feel unsure about what 
advice they give.  To help address concerns around risk, we will promote the consensus 

statement5: “It is safer for people with long term conditions to be physical active” , through 
our Move More Better Health campaign, to reinforce this message that the benefits 

outweigh the risks.  We will use similar framing for our messaging to encourage older 

people across the Moorlands to keep moving.  Our aim will be to shift mindsets among 
organisations and residents around the importance of keeping active as we get older. 

 
We will prioritise establishing shared spaces where our networks come together both at a 

strategic level and in our priority places.  In this way we aim to nurture collaborative 
working practices around collective messaging and beyond. 

 
Place based working  

 
We will commit to investing in areas that experience the greatest inequalities, using a place 

based approach to our work and investment, that builds on existing strengths.  Prioritising 
places where we have the conditions for change and evidence of need and jointly attracting 

                                                 
5
 https://movingmedicine.ac.uk/riskconsensus/ 

Page 36



 11 

and realigning financial resources and capacity to these communities.  Where we have 
leisure facilities, co-design of opportunities within them will be part of this work. 
 
The place based work in Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek are still developing, each of these 
places has neighbourhoods with greater need. At a neighbourhood level, we will continue to 
find out what matters to local people and work alongside the community, the voluntary 
sector and local leaders to enable change, recognising that this may take time.  We believe 

this approach of developing our understanding of people and places will help us to change 
the system to enable people to move more. 

 
Better health 

  
We will work to embed movement within integrated health and care systems, ensuring it is 

recognised, prioritised, and supported by healthcare professionals, commissioners, carers, 
and wider community work such as social prescribing, weight management and mental 

health services.  At the same time, supporting the health and care workforce to have 
conversations about moving more.  Where we have leisure facilities, they will more closely 
integrate health and leisure opportunities, offering an alternative gateway into the health 
system for local communities. 
 
Focusing on the long term conditions most prevalent across the Moorlands, particularly 
hypertension, depression, obesity, diabetes and muscular-skeletal, we will develop targeted 
work to understand how to engage people with long term conditions more effectively and 
demonstrate the preventative and treatment benefits of moving more. This approach of 
identifying people with the most prevalent conditions is supported by partners and fits with 
our principle of enabling opportunities for all by proportionately focusing our capacity and 
resources on the people that need it most.  
 
Environments 
 
Ensuring our neighbourhoods feel accessible, welcoming, and safe will be the key to 
reducing inequalities, as we know that most physical activity and sport takes place within 20 
minutes of our homes.  Through our place based work, we will continue to hear local 

perspectives on walking, cycling, access to green space and community facilities, particularly 
through the eyes of people experiencing inequalities and long term health conditions.  This 

insight will feed into our leisure facilities, ensuring our spaces meet these identified needs 
as part of our leisure transformation planning. 
 

We will invest in built infrastructure, using active design principles to enable movement and 
participation in physical activity and sport, and improve connectivity and movement 
through walkable and cyclable local environments, parks and open spaces.   
 
We will make our natural landscapes and green open spaces more accessible to our groups 
in greater need, with particular focus on active travel, including walking as an easy form of 

physical activity. 
 

Page 37



 12 

We must acknowledge that physical activity and sport both have an impact on the 
environment and on climate change from energy use of our facilities to single use plastic 
water bottles.  But we also know that moving more, particularly outdoors can help us to 
reduce our carbon footprint, providing sustainable forms of travel and reducing energy use.  
Through this strategy, we will look to minimise environmental impact by encouraging 
environmentally friendly behaviours and sustainable solutions. 
 

Universal offer 
 

Maintaining the active habits of adults and children across the Moorlands through ensuring 
an offer is available to everyone will continue to be a focus of this strategy, as it was our last 

strategy.  We know that six in ten adults and just less than half of children play sport or do 
physical activity in places such as leisure centres, schools, sports clubs, community centres 

and parks and green spaces and it’s important that this continues if this group are to 
maintain their active habit. 

 
We will work to ensure these organisations and settings are supported to offer quality 
opportunities based on the needs of the communities they serve.  That facilities are of the 
required quality and where possible, we will encourage and support them to engage with 
priority groups and places we know need more support and access to opportunity. 
 
Investing in the built infrastructure which supports the organisations and places to continue 
to offer these opportunities is crucial and this will happen through strong strategic planning, 
collaboration with national partners, governing bodies of sport, funding bodies and the 
planning system, amongst others. 
 
Children and young people 
 
Establishing early habits, developing movement skills and enjoying being active are so 
important for children and young people. We know that the earlier these attitudes are 
developed and maintained, and the earlier these skills are learnt, the more likely they will 
become a lasting part of people's lives. In addition to the physical benefits, the mental 
health benefits are huge; being active can help build self-esteem and resilience and instil a 

sense of belonging. Being active and playing sport also has a role in preventing anti -social 
behaviour and reducing violence. 

However, Covid-19 has exacerbated the barriers for young people. Many children and young 
people weren't active enough before the pandemic, and now they are even less so. Young 
people's mental health has also worsened during the pandemic, so we need to look at the 
role physical activity might play in preventing, and treating, mental ill health. 

To understand this better we need to hear from young people themselves. We need to 
understand their motivations, experiences, and challenges and use this to inform work with 

partners.  We'll also use this understanding to shape the environments where children and 
young people can be active and redesign the services and opportunities available in schools, 

parks, clubs and community settings. And finally, we need to join the dots between schools 
and the wider neighbourhood to better connect the work being done and to help the young 

people in those communities, in and outside of school. 

Page 38



 13 

Case studies 

New 3G pitch boosts opportunities for the Leek community  
 

Since the football pitch at Harrison Park in Leek was converted from grass to 3G, it has 
become a focal point of activity within the community.  In addition to Leek Town first team, 

the Ladies first team and disability team now play their home fixtures at the ground.  The 
junior teams now use the pitch for their training session, which brings together all of the 

associated teams under one roof.  It’s also home to a weekly session of walking football for 
the over 50s. 

 
Originally a plan from Leek Town FC, who were looking for ways to make themselves more 

financially secure, it became the vision of a broad a range of partners who could see the 
potential to deliver wider benefits to the whole community.  

 
Working together and jointly funding the project, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, 

Football Foundation, Staffordshire Football Association and Leek Town FC embarked on 

what became a long journey to see this dream realised. 
 

Firstly, once all the partners were onboard, the pitch conversion was included as one of the 
top targets in the Local Football Facilities Plan.  This gave it prominence when identifying 

and securing funding.  The partners worked hard to fully understand the requirements of 
the project and ultimately pulled together a significant funding package to realise the 

conversion.   
 

The project was developed through the pandemic, which at times made it very difficult to 
make progress, but the work eventually started in May 2021 and was fully completed by 

October 2021.  And it wasn’t just the timescale that was affected.  The football club felt the 
impact on their first team’s ability to play, membership and finances.  But undeterred, the 

sight of the pitch being used by all sections of their community is inspiring them to further 
developments on and off the pitch in the future.  For all partners, being able to realise these 

plans through a collaborative effort and deliver a facility that is usable seven days a week, 
has meant that the partnership remains strong and will continue into new endeavours. 

 

 
Developing a place based approach 

Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands clearly identified that some of our 

neighbourhoods are not as active as others. Over the last few years, Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council has been working voluntary and community sector partners to 

establish place based working approaches in some of these neighbourhoods. The work in 

neighbourhoods in Leek, Biddulph and Cheadle have all progressed in their own way: 

 The work in Leek saw initial investment made into a Community Activator through a 

local community centre. Since that partnership came to an end, the work in Leek is now 

exploring opportunities with other partners. These conversations have already led to 

staff and volunteers being trained to lead Health Walks in the area. 

Page 39



 14 

 In Biddulph, investment continues to be made into a Community Activator through 

Biddulph Youth & Community Zone (BYCZ).  This work has proved successful with many 

new initiatives coming through, including healthy food preparation videos; men’s 

wellbeing activities; over 60s activity sessions, and themed walks around Easter and 

Halloween for families. 

 The work in Cheadle is beginning to gather momentum. The focus is currently on 

building relationships, understanding and trust between key organisations invested in 

the community. Plans are also developing around several key parks, green spaces and 

leisure facilities in the town. Should these progress, they will provide opportunities for 

further developing a shared approach to helping people to move more. 

The work in each of these areas has created stories  to share about how the work has 

impacted on the activity levels and lives of different individuals, and they are providing 

valuable learning to partners involved about how to approach placed based working. To 

make more of the experiences in the different places a Place Based Network has been 

established to provide a space for all partners to share and learn from the work. This will 

help to broaden connectivity in these communities and spread understanding of things that 

need to change to help more local people experience being active.  

 
Better Health Staffordshire 

 
In January 2021, Staffordshire Moorlands was selected as one of three districts/boroughs in 

Staffordshire to become a pilot area for a new, whole systems approach which aims to 
promote a healthy weight and active lifestyle. 

 
Since January 2021, partners have been working together to engage, map, listen and plan 

how we can understand and work with communities more effectively. 
 

We have gathered an improved understanding of what may cause obesity and how these 
interconnects in a place.  And through place based working, we will be working 
collaboratively with communities to develop a shared understanding of how positive change 
can be created by working in an asset based way together. 
 
Already, there are more organisations working together than before the Moorlands was 
selected as a pilot area.  Trust, understanding, collaboration and engagement is already 
growing, with so much potential to make positive change in the future.  

Page 40



 15 

How will we know if people are moving more?  
 
We believe there isn’t a single way to measure whether people are moving more.  But 
together, the approaches below will build up a richer picture of not only the progress being 
made, but importantly which aspects are working, which aren’t and, how we are continually 
learning and evolving our approach. 
 
A focus on learning 
 
How we learn together and understand what contributes to change at system, 
organisational and community level, will be central to how we support people to move 
more.  We will think about learning from the process as well as about the change created 
(whether positive or negative).  By bringing together a range of approaches we will look at 
things from as many perspectives as possible, to ensure our learning is rich and reflects 
what is happening between organisations and in the community. 
 
Stories of change and case studies 

 
We will observe what change is happening at system, organisational and community level 

and use stories and case studies to help explain what factors have contributed towards that 
change.  The detail will be built from a range of perspectives, so that what is collected can 

help shape collective learning and influence our future approach.  In this way, we aim to 
bring the work to life, using case studies to positively influence others as to the benefits of 

movement. 
 

Data 
 

We will use a diverse range of population data to help explore and understand local needs, 
particularly where priority groups, places and related health conditions are concerned.  The 

ongoing review of population level data will be complemented by other more local sources 
of data such as leisure centre, programme and intervention data to inform learning around 

their reach, quality and contribution to the overall aim of people moving more. 

 
To help ensure our focus remains on the people and places which need it most, we will use 

data to help to observe what changes might be occurring over time, drawing out patterns 
and trends which will help us understand what is working, not working or what is changing.  

Where it is relevant and appropriate to monitor attendances, we will do so, but recognise 
we should only count what needs to be counted. 

 
 

  

Page 41



 16 

Join us and get behind our shared goal - what’s your role? 
 
Together, our aim is for everyone across the Moorlands to move more every day and 
within this, to provide greater support to those that need it most. 
 
Achieving our vision will take a collective effort from individuals, communities and 
organisations across the district.  A challenge that requires us all to think differently, act 
boldly and recognise the role we have to play. 
 

Is this the first time you’ve heard about Move More Staffordshire Moorlands? 
 

 Why not share this strategy with colleagues and discuss  how your organisation 
could get involved? 

 

What can you do to help make a positive change happen?   
 

 Why not help us shape implementation plans for the priorities within the strategy as 
we work to bring our shared vision to life. 

 
 Share your ideas with us at movemore@staffordshiremoorlands.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 42

mailto:movemore@staffordshiremoorlands.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	7 Work Programme
	8 SMDC Refreshed Sports and Physical Activity Strategy
	Appendix A

	10 Proposals for the Delivery of the Disabled Facilities Grant Programme
	Appendix 1


